
CITY OF HANOVER 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

OCTOBER 6, 2020 – OFFICIAL MINUTES 
 
Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance: 
Mayor Chris Kauffman called the regular meeting of Tuesday, October 6, 2020 to order at 7:02 p.m.  
Present were Mayor Chris Kauffman, Councilors Ken Warpula, Doug Hammerseng, Jim Zajicek and 
MaryAnn Hallstein.  Also present was Accountant Jackie Heinz.  Guests included Fire Chief Dave 
Malewicki, Stan Kolasa, Jodi Tappe, Pat Hardy and Todd Geske. 
 
Approval of Agenda: 
Kauffman added River Inn Temporary Tent as item 7. 
MOTION by Warpula to approve the amended agenda, seconded by Hammerseng.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Consent Agenda: 
MOTION by Warpula to approve the consent agenda, seconded by Hallstein. 

a. Approve Minutes of September 15, 2020 City Council Work Session Meeting 
b. Approve Minutes of September 22, 2020 Special City Council Meeting 
c. Approve Claims as Presented: 

 Claims  $     99,375.67 
 Payroll   $     19,186.01 
 P/R taxes & Exp $       7,663.97 
 Other Claims  $       5,289.05 
 Total Claims     $   131,514.70 

d. Res No 10-06-20-95 – Approving Amend. #1 to Hennepin County Recycling Agreement 
e. Res No 10-06-20-96 – Approving Pay Voucher #1 for 2020 Road Improvement Project 
f. Res No 10-06-20-97 – Approving Purchase of Fire Department Equipment 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Citizen’s Forum: 
None 
 
Public Hearings: 
None 
 
Unfinished Business: 
None  
 
New Business: 

River Inn Temporary Tent 
Jodi Tappe from River Inn passed out a packet, stating page one states their goals to get through the winter 
months.  Tappe thanked council for allowing a summer patio and stated they plan to bring the area up to 
code later but need to get through the winter hurdle.  Going into the fall and winter they are struggling, 
people cannot wait inside for tables and they are still restricted to 50% capacity, the hostess stand will 
need to be outside all winter.  Tappe further stated she feels bad there is no where for people to wait when 
it’s cold, raining or snowing, their original crew is all back to work, and they have added some staff.  
Tappe wants to create a safe and relaxing atmosphere.  Kauffman stated everyone thought the state would 
be open by now.  Tappe stated their first solution was not a tent, they are working with Canvas Craft out 



of Rogers who also did the windows on their porch.  Tappe further stated they have it dialed into a 20x30 
insulated tent with windows and 3 entrance / exits.  She has talked with West Air and Comfort Matters 
regarding the heating, they’re suggesting infrared heaters which are vented outside for the large tent and 
unsure about the hostess area tent.  Tappe stated for the hostess area they’re looking into an igloo style 
similar to what Freehouse in North Minneapolis has used. 
 
Kauffman inquired the size of the current slab, Tappe stated she is unsure, they were going to do 20x40, 
but it would have gone into the rocks.  Hammerseng inquired how the tent would be secured to the ground, 
Tappe stated she is unsure, but Canvas Craft will install the tent and she is unsure what the floor will be.  
Warpula stated the concrete would be good as a temporary solution, Zajicek stated the concrete will be 
cold and suggested carpet would help. 
 
Kauffman inquired what the snow load rating of the tent is.  Tappe stated being the tent would be heated 
it will not stay for long, they plan to heat the tent 24 hours per day and use a shovel to scrape the roof.  
Warpula stated the goal is to keep our businesses in business and employees working.  Warpula further 
stated with the peacetime emergency still in effect, they need to help all businesses. 
 
Todd Geske with Metro West Inspection Services stated fire code dictates all structures.  A tent needs to 
be treated with a flame retardant and the value of flame smoke needs to be stated.  Geske further stated if 
the tent is under 400 square feet, building and fire code does not apply.  Kauffman inquired how event 
tents get by, Geske stated they are tagged for flame resistance of some sort.  Geske further stated the tent 
material Tappe has looks to be flammable.  Malewicki inquired how many tables and people would be 
seated under the tent, Tappe stated 5 or 6 tables.  Geske stated there needs to be 15 square feet per person, 
so 20 people could be in the tent and the doors must be 3’ wide.  Tappe stated the doors would be hands 
free and magnetic.   
 
Geske stated his concern with the heater is if it’s not center mounted it won’t heat correctly.  Tappe stated 
two furnaces could be installed and vented outside.  Geske stated he needs the heater specs and inquired 
how they would be suspended.  Tappe stated she did not have those details.  Geske stated he would talk 
with Canvas Craft about the specs.  Zajicek inquired if a garage heater is as dangerous as infrared, there 
are tube heaters and other options available.  Geske stated he feels it should not be heated all night, if we 
receive a wet, heavy snow, the canvas wants to sag in, the heating source and canvas material needs to be 
looked at.   
 
Discussion continued around the size of the structure and using smaller sized tents to create a larger space. 
 
Warpula inquired if a permit would be required.  Malewicki stated certain things will need to be inspected 
as part of the permit process.  Geske stated if the structure is not reviewed and inspected, he is breaking 
state law.  Warpula inquired if all parties could work together to find a solution in the next couple of days.  
Hallstein stated if the concerns about the building and fire code are met, then everything is good. 
 

Firefighter Hourly Pay 
Malewicki stated you can have all the fire equipment but without the people, we have nothing.  Heinz 
stated in 2016 and prior members were paid $8.00 per tick, in 2017 that changed to $10.00 per call and 
$17.00 per meeting or training, in 2018 that was changed to $10.00 per hour for all items which is what it 
remains today.  Kauffman inquired if there is a minimum, Malewicki stated a one hour minimum.  
Hallstein inquired what members do if they don’t make a truck.  Malewicki stated clean the station, 
bathrooms, maintenance and empty garbages.  Kauffman stated in his observation when driving by the 
station he has seen members standing outside.  Kauffman further stated he would like to see a new SOP 



where the entire department is not required to show up to get their percentage.  On a 4-person medical 
call, 20 members show up.  Malewicki stated on average 16-17 members are showing up.  Hammerseng 
inquired if all members who show up get the one-hour minimum pay, Malewicki stated yes.  Kauffman 
inquired if there is a way to separate members who respond to fire and medical calls.  Hallstein inquired 
if members can see who is available on the Active911 app, Malewicki stated yes, members can state if 
they are responding, available, unavailable and see how other members are responding.  Warpula stated 
on a major structure fire, 8 people are required.  Kauffman stated medicals are the issue, not fires.  
Malewicki stated a medical call at 3:00 am has 4 people responding.  Kauffman inquired if the department 
could work medical calls differently.  Malewicki stated the department could be cut in half for responding 
times.  Hammerseng inquired if attendance at calls is high at the beginning of the year and then drops off, 
Malewicki stated no, it’s consistent year-round. 
 
Hammerseng inquired about previous payroll amounts.  Heinz stated in 2017 gross payroll was 
$49,773.68, in 2018 it was $64,469.50, in 2019 it was $49,452.50 and for the first half of 2020 it was 
$21,845.00. 
 
Discussion continued around training and members responding to medical calls. 
 
Hallstein inquired if the department is over staffed at calls.  Malewicki stated he has no problem with 
being overstaffed, it’s when they are understaffed.  Malewicki further stated they are overstaffed during 
weeknights from 6:00 – 10:00 pm on weekends.  Kauffman stated he feels members would be more apt 
to show up if they were scheduled.  Malewicki stated duty crews could be scheduled from 6-10 pm or 
whenever, a 2-person crew would respond and be paid to stand by at the station.  Kauffman stated it would 
be a more efficient use of time.  Zajicek inquired about people responding on holiday weekends.  Warpula 
stated members are asked ahead of time if they plan to be out of town, if the officers feel uncomfortable 
with amount of members responding they will request mutual aid right away, people have also changed 
their plans to stay home.   
 
Zajicek inquired if members can drive their personal vehicle to the scene.  Warpula stated for fire alarms 
it’s okay, not protocol for fires.  Malewicki stated if the medical is a true life medical then the member 
could also drive to the scene.  Kauffman stated the city has swallowed some big steps since 2016 and 
would like to wait on an increase.  Hallstein stated this is a random numbers game and there is no control 
over the calls.  Hammerseng suggested collecting more date over the next year or two and study the 
mayors’ concept of assigned days to respond to medical calls.  Hammerseng further stated there is no 
consecutive data, need consistent years and blend with the mayors’ concept.  Warpula stated the 
department could be broken up into 7 teams of 4 people, each would be assigned one night of the week to 
respond and be paid $20.00 per call.  Warpula further stated $80.00 in payroll would be paid out versus 
15 people responding and paying $150.00 in payroll.   
 
Malewicki stated the truck committee has been specking out a new fire truck, estimated cost is currently 
$850k, he welcomes council to attend a meeting on Wednesday, October 14th at 6:00 pm at the fire station 
to discuss financing options.  Kauffman inquired the plan with the old truck, Malewicki stated he would 
like it to be parked at Corcoran Public Works to respond to calls.   
 
 
 
 
 
 



Reports  
 Hammerseng 

• Would like information on 500 Kadler and wonders why they haven’t completed what they 
said they would.   

Hallstein 
• Would like an update on the Kottke Property Clean Up 
• Suggested scheduling a communication meeting for possible new members of council. 

Heinz 
• The Park Board Virtual Pumpkin Event is taking place on Saturday at Public Works from 

1-3 pm. 
 
Adjournment 
MOTION by Warpula to adjourn at 8:36 p.m., seconded by Hammerseng.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
       APPROVED BY: 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
        
___________________________________ 
Jackie Heinz, Accountant / Deputy Clerk 


